
North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving 
Club 

Annual Report 2020/2021 



Notice of 99th Annual General Meeting 3 

Board Meeting Attendance 3 

Club Administration  4 

Office Bearers 2020/2021 6 

President’s Report 7 

Club Awards 9 

Club Membership 2020/2021 10 

Surf Lifesaving Report 13 

Patrol Awards 15 

Education Report 16 

2020/2021 Surf Life Saving Awards  18 

Junior Activities Report 19 

Marketing  23 

Surf Sports 27 

Finance Report 28 

Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement  
and Independent Auditor’s Report  

30 

North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club Inc 

Huston Parade 
PO Box 4112, 
North Curl Curl, 
2099 NSW  

Phone: 02 9905 8671 
 
Email: administration@nccslsc.com.au 
Website: nccslsc.com.au 
Facebook: facebook.com/NCCSLSC  

Affiliated with Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Inc.  
Surf Life Saving Australia Ltd  
ABN 74 095 397 083 
 

 

CONTENTS 

North Curl Curl SLSC Objectives 

The objectives of the Club shall be to: 

1. Study and practice methods of Life Saving;  

2. Minimise the loss of life by applying effective lifesaving skills and beach patrol services;  

3. Promote, demonstrate and arrange instruction in the principles that underlie the skills of surf lifesaving and to  
generally further the best interests of Life Saving;  

4. Assist the Council’s Professional Lifeguard in his/her duty and by, via the Club’s beach patrols, render all  
appropriate assistance to those in distress;  

5. Encourage and promote the physical and social welfare of its members;  

6. Promote a professional and friendly image and act in a courteous and professional manner at all times;  

7. Develop and educate Junior Activities Members in the skills of surf lifesaving and to promote their progression  
and integration to the senior ranks of the Club;  

8. Support the Board in its actions in promoting the Club and surf lifesaving.  



Surf Life Saving  
Sydney Northern Beaches  

Key Partners 

Proud Supporters of North Curl Curl SLSC 
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AGENDA 

All Members and Visitors to sign the Attendance Book 
 
 - Apologies and Proxies 
 - Confirmation and Adoption of Minutes: 2020AGM 
 - Presentation of Annual Report 
 - Presentation and Adoption of Financial Statements for 
   Year Ended 30 April 2021 
 - Motion to Affiliate with SLSSNB (Branch)  
 - Club Awards 
 - Determination of Annual Fees 
 - Notices of Motion 
 - Election of 2021/2022 President, Directors and Office Bearers 
 - Election of Life Member Award Committee 
 - Election of Honorary Members 
 - Adoption of By-Laws 
 - General Business  

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors, Delegates and Club Officers. 
 

Mick Crews 
Director of Administration 

Notice is hereby given that the  

THE NINETY NINTH 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
of the North Curl Curl SLSC will be held at  
the North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club  
at Huston Parade, North Curl Curl Beach 
on Sunday 12th December , 2021 at 2pm 

Position Attendance 
Apology/ 

Absent 

President  10 0 

Director of Surf Life Saving  8 2 

Director of Education  10 0 

Director of Administration 8 2 

Director of Finance  7 3 

Director of Surf Sports  8 2 

Director of Junior Activities  3 7 

Director of Marketing 6 4 

Director Member Services 8 2 

Director of Youth  0 0 

99th ANNUAL REPORT 
 
To the Members of  
North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club Inc., 

Mick Crews 
Director of Administration 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ATTENDANCE 

There were Ten Board of Directors Meetings.  
Attendances are presented as follows: 

REMEMBRANCE  

Our deepest sympathy to members, 
relatives and friends who have suffered 
bereavement or illness during the past 
season, and we trust the support and 
friendship of North Curl Curl Surf Life 
Saving Club is of comfort during your 

hard and troubled moments.  
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Season 2020-21 was a year full of Covid restrictions and disruptions to which our club 
reacted and responded with distinction across all fields and age groups.  

As usual our Patrol teams led the way with perfect attendance and professional expertise 
protecting our community. Alex (Wiz) Wye and his team conducted thousands of  
preventative actions ensuring the safety of all beach attendees. I completed a number of 
patrols this year for the first time in many, many years, and I was very impressed with the 
selfless helpful attitude displayed by all members. Thank you all for your time and care. 
 

Surf Sports was another area that saw great results for the Club, which is covered in Glenn 
Slater’s report. However, I must give massive congratulations to our Nippers competitors 
for their  22nndd  State Age Championship victory in a row. Our Senior competitors also excelled 
achieving some impressive results at State and Aussies. 

 
Over the years we have always had a small core of Masters competitors. This year the Club 
focused on increasing our Masters membership and the Branch Competitive Team swelled 
from 4 to over 20 with a Water Team, a Beach Team and Boaties Team. As a result North 
Curly won the Branch title for the first time ever! A great achievement. Many of our compet-
itors were first timers and we made many friendships and had a lot of fun discussing our 
achievements every Friday night at the bar after training. We welcome anyone and every-
one to join and would particularly like to see more women join our ranks. 

 

I would like to acknowledge our Clothing Team led by Victoria Howell. In a year of uncer-
tainty Vic and the team kept our members comfortable in quality merchandise. Thanks 
also to Audrey Cheah, Katie Davis and Jocelyn Dacic for organising the Nippers State Kit. 
Well done to Lynda Warner and Matt Egan for organising the Aussie Juniors gear. 

 
Our kiosk and bar/restaurant had an unsettled year due to the restrictions imposed by 
Covid. Chris Sparkes and Aldo did a fantastic job adjusting to the regulations as they con-
stantly changed. The Golf Day was particularly affected by Covid but somehow ‘Sparkesy’ 
still managed to pull off a successful day. 

 
Thanks also to Lucy Russell. Lucy is the Club Assistant who does all the important things 
that the rest of us overlook. Lucy covers my many deficiencies, thanks Lucy. 

 
Special mention to our Club President, David Wymer. Most people are unaware of the time 
and effort Dave puts into the Club and the Boaties. If we paid him for his hours worked we 
would be broke. Sincere thanks Dave. 

 
Welcome to our new Board Members, Brett Jeffrey, Saul Brown and John Vickery. Thanks 
for your dedication. Congratulations to all of our Board members for a successful season in 
trying circumstances. Your time and dedication is invaluable to our community and I look 
forward to working with you all next season. 

 
Finally, I would particularly like to thank our Registrar, Julie Tassone. Last season Julie put 
in massive hours registering all of our members on her own. This is completely behind the 
scenes and a task which gets little acknowledgement. Julie, we can’t thank you enough. 

 

See you on the beach next season, Michael Crews. 

Mick Crews  
Director of 

Administration 

CLUB ADMINISTRATION 

“Our Club 
Members  

continued to  
excel in all 

fields” 
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Despite COVID-19 and the various challenges that we faced, registrations across the Club were actually higher than in the  
previous season & the pace was fast and furious! With the restrictions came challenges, it was actually the perfect opportunity 
to force the online process for every member, paving a much simpler process for the years ahead. In taking the role of registrar 
back on this season after a 3 year break, I would personally like to thank Kate Kelly for her awesome work over the previous 
few seasons which she primarily did on her own - no easy feat with 6 kids in tow.  

 

While there were some frustrations in the SLSA system, it is pleasing to see the software improve each year. We managed to 
work through the odd glitch or two to get a pleasing result. Notably, this season saw the change to incorporate the redemption 
of the Active Kids via the SLSA portal which was a huge time saving in the registration space from previous years. Thanks very 
much to our office administrator, Lucy Russell, who came to my rescue early in the season and thanks to the Board for allocat-
ing her as a resource. Some rapid training soon helped to lighten the load. Total registrations for this season are 1559 - up by 
40 from previous year, with Nippers only 20 less than the previous year despite having to slow down taking registrations as our 
U6's & U7's reached capacity numbers for Covid restrictions. 

 

Plans for the coming season are to simplify the fee structure and maximise the Active Kids vouchers for all of our school age 
members. We will provide some simple steps for renewing and new memberships and also answer some FAQ's. A main take-
away from this season has been for those Nippers who are transitioning to Cadets and needing to continue with online educa-
tion under their own SLSA logins whilst remaining in a Family Group. Providing instruction to the Education team should make 
this a better process next season. Thanks to all the members for their patience and support over the past season and we look 
forward to a great season ahead. 

 

 

CLUB Registrar  

North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 

Julie Tassone  
Club Registrar  

Total Club membership Total Patrolling members 

MMeemmbbeerrsshhiipp  GGrroowwtthh  
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President David Wymer 

Director of Administration Michael Crews 

Director of Finance Simon Prowse 

Director of Surf Life Saving Alexander Wye 

Director of Junior Activities John Vickery 

Director of Surf Sports Glenn Slater 

Director of Marketing  Saul Brown 

Director of Education  Brett Jeffery 

Director of Member Services Chris Sparkes 

Director of Youth  Vacant 

Assistant Directors of Surf Life Saving  Carmel Howard / Greg Stretton 

Assistant Director of Administration Peta Fairlie 

Assistant Director of Finance Colin Wilson 

Assistant Director of Surf Sports David Jones 

Assistant Director of Marketing Branca Salaverry 

Assistant Director of Education Vacant 

Assistant Director of Youth Vacant 

Assistant Director of Member Services David Quinn 

Club Registrar Julie Tassone 

Power Craft Delegate Matt Truman 

ATV Coordinator Greg Stretton 

First Aid Officer Carmel Howard 

Radio Officer Sarah Wanden 

Gear Steward Andrew Stuart 

Sunday Events Co-ordinator  Alexander Wye 

Water Sports Delegate David Jones 

Boat Delegate Vacant 

Beach Delegate Sophie McGovern  

Junior Captain (Female) Vacant 

Junior Captain (Male) Vacant 

OH&S Officer Aldo Ramos  

Child Protection Officer David Wymer 

Club Historian Kevin Martin 

  

Office Bearers 2020/2021 
Board of Directors, Delegates and Club Officers 

North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 
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PRESIDENT’S report 

David Wymer 
President 

It is with great pleasure that I present my 4th Annual Report for the 2020/2021 surf season 
on behalf of North Curl Curl SLSC. I would like to sincerely thank our Board of Directors for 
their dedicated voluntary time, guidance, direction & overall enthusiasm for our club. The 
past season was like no other before with so much uncertainty due to the global Covid-19 
pandemic, but in these uncertain and worrying times we came together as a club, a family 
and local community and made the season one of the best possible with so many fantastic  
outcomes and targets reached, and for this I would like to thank every single member of our 
club. It was hard at times but we made it.  

For Ninety Nine years now our volunteer members have kept the beach of North Curl Curl 
safe & fatality free whilst on Patrol. With another season of volunteer Beach Patrols  
completed, it’s an opportune time to reinforce the most important responsibility we have 
here at North Curl Curl. That is, to patrol our beach during the season, and to ensure that it 
is a safe environment for all that visit so they get to go home to their families.  

Our patrol members have once again kept our beach safe this season, and we thank them 
for their dedication, as volunteers, for their commitment to uphold the high standards of the 
red & yellow through some difficult conditions & busy periods on the beach. Very special 
thanks go to our Patrol Captains that took up that extra level of responsibility leading their 
teams & have managed their responsibilities admirably again this season. On behalf of all 
members, I wish to thank Alex Wye, Director of Life Saving, for the tireless work and count-
less hours on the beach ensuring that our commitment to saving lives is professionally ad-
ministered.  

The education of our members has developed significantly over the past 12 months with a 
professional approach taken under the direction of our Director of Education Brett Jeffery. 
The success of our lifesaving and education services here at the Club are mainly due to the 
professional and decisive management delivered by our club trainers. Our Education and 
Training team have done a wonderful job this season under some very tough conditions due 
to the covid restrictions put in place. Education is an important pillar within our Surf Club 
and one that we must continually work at to maintain the quality of patrols we currently have 
and pride ourselves on. We have a dedicated team of educators who are motivated to  
educate and train our members, please use their services next season & I thank you all for 
your ongoing efforts. 

Our club sponsors and supporters are an integral part of your club and have continued to 
provide that much needed financial support towards the ongoing operation of our facilities & 
services so please try to support them where possible. On behalf of the Club I would like to 
formally thank our local representatives for their ongoing support.  

Junior Activities program lead by John Vickery & his Junior Activities Team, has continued to 
provide fun activities that teach our kids surf skills, surf safety & team work. We have an 
incredible group of mums and dads who act as Age Managers, Water Safety plus IRB  
Drivers, IRB Crew & Officials throughout the season, we could not deliver our Junior Activi-
ties program without their support. Thank you for your efforts - it’s not always easy, but very  
rewarding.  

Lastly to the Nipper kids, thanks for turning up each week and having a go wearing the 
GREEN & GOLD of North Curl Curl with such pride.  

Our solid results in attracting new members, retention & encouraging our Nippers to  
continue into the Youth section has been sensational, hence winning Branch Age Champion-
ships & winning back-to-back NSW Championships. Outstanding effort!!!! 

“This is my last year 
as president, I am 

over the moon with 
the momentum 
and success our 

club has seen in the 
past 4 years” 

North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 



Our continued success in the Surf Sports arena is a testament to the dedication and commitment of the Surf Sports team. There 
is no simple formula for our continued success at the local, State & Aussies Titles other than a constant review of how we do 
things, along with an enormous amount of hard work by our coaching staff, setting programs for competitors that are willing to 
train hard, soak up the knowledge delivered & strive for results. It was great to see both male & female Boat crews training hard 
to compete this season with some success & hopefully the momentum of numbers will increase. Another section of competition 
on the build is our winter Pool Rescue competitors - thanks to Tony Williams for taking the lead in improving their skills.  

It was a challenging year for me personally just like it was for everyone, but it was one that has also helped me grow a lot as a 
leader & learn a lot as a club mate and human being, I must thank my wife Alex for her enduring support & patience along with 
Julie Tassone, Dave Murray and all the Life Members for their guidance and support over the past 12 months. 

To the Club Board & Management team I value all your efforts and time spent in developing our club. I am so proud of our club 
and have only ever intended to help it grow to be one of the best clubs in the county. Personally I feel we are there and have the 
best Surf Life Saving Club in Australia today. 

To all of our members, thank you for your support over the season of 2020/2021 and I look forward to seeing you all on the 
beach in 2021/2022. 
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2020/2021 Club Awards  

Honour Blazer 

Chris Sparkes 

  
Mark Watson Memorial 

Award  
Best Patrol Person  

Ben Dreghorn (Patrol No. 11)  

  
 

Best Junior  Patrol Person 
Male 

Jamie Swane (Patrol No, 6)  
  

 

Best Junior Patrol Person 
Female 

Skye Currie (Patrol No. 12)  
 

 

Best Patrol Captain 
Andrew Mackenzie 

(Patrol No. 9)  

 

 

Whakatane Trophy 
Best Carnival Competitor 

  

Dominique Melbourn 

North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 
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Z. Alford 
E. Alker 
R. Apps 
A. Atkins 
T. Ball 
J. Barrett 
G. Beauchamp 
G. Bendeich 
L. Bendeich 
A. Bilbow 
J. Bonner 
J. Briggs 
M. Brittain 
A. Brodie 
A. Broughton-Rouse 
C. Brown 
N. Burke 
S. Burton 
J. Callard 
R. Castel 
M. Chiarelli 
J. Collard 
R. Connors 
J. Cooper 
C. Cullum 
A. Currie 
I. Dacic 
N. Daley 
Z. Dang 
M. De Vera 
J. Deane 
S. Deane 
K. Del Gallo 
C. Dobson 
S. Douneen 
N. Duffy 
H. Dunstan 
S. Ebrill 
J. Elboz 
P. Erickson 
P. Fairlie 
D. Finch 
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LIFE MEMBERS  
DECEASED 

G. Bruce  
L. Bulmer  
N. Coltman 
J. R. Duff  
J. P. Duff 
G. Dyer 
W. Geoghegan  
C. Hagon  
A. Hudson  
P. Kember  
N. Langthorne 
K. Martin  
D. Murray  
J. Newton 
R. Porter  
L. Saunderson 
B. Smith  
K. Smith  
C. Stoneman  
J. Tassone 
R. Watson  
A. N. Wye  
S. Wye  

LIFE MEMBERS  

T. Aldridge 
C. Alley 
T. Atkins 
P. Austin 
C. Blackmore 
A. Broad 
S. Brown 
S. Byrnes 
C. Chaffer 
R. Chown 
H. Christie 
G. Coltman 
L. Coltman 
S. Coulter 
P. Cullum 
T. Darsley 
S. Davis 
B. Dawes 
A. Dennehy 
L. Dowsett 
B. Dreghorn 
M. Garrett 
P. Hagon 
N. Hatch 
C. Henderson 
K. Henderson 
S. Hill 
A. Hines 
N. Hoschke 
C. Howard 
J. Howieson 
D. Jones 
M. Jones 
M. Kember 
W. Langthorne 
S. Macqueen 
N. Mckinnon 
R. Merton 
M. Nicholson 
E. Paling 
C. Plunkett 
R. Plunkett 
A. Prictor 
D. Quinn 
M. Saunders 
D. Signorini 
G. Slater 
C. Sparkes 
S. Stacey 
T. Stentiford 
G. Stretton 
C. Tassone 
J. Vickery 

John Huston 

HONOURARY  
MEMBERS 

R. Agnew 
K. Aldridge 
P. A. Aldridge 
B. K. Andrews 
K. Broomham 
J. Bulmer 
W. M. Carroll 
C. Duff 
W. Eady 
H. G. Foden 
C. R. Fourro 
H. C. Grew 
T. A. Grew 
R. Harris 
C. Hirsch 
H. J. Huston 
O. J. Kennedy 
R. Lambert  
P. Metz 
D. O`Brien 
G. O’Brien 
R. Saunderson 
W. Spradley 
K. Stoneman  
M. J. Sullivan 
R.  Swift 
J. O. Wilson 

R. Fontbin 
M. Gamborg 
J. Gardner 
J. Gerich 
O. Gligorevic 
C. Glover 
W. Golgerth 
C. Grace 
L. Grace 
D. Grady 
G. Gurtata 
C. Hagon 
S. Hagon 
G. Hahn 
J. Harvey 
B. Hay 
L. Hay 
J. Hayward Smith 
N. Hebden 
T. Hext 
B. Hickey 
P. Hickey 
S. Hickey 
A. Hoffmann 
L. House 
C. Hutchinson 
K. Inkster 
D. Irvine 
B. Jeffrey 
P. Johnson 
M. Johnston 
M. Jones 
G. Keller 
M. Keller 
C. Kennedy 
R. Killian 
E. Kinoshita 
C. Kirby 
J. Kirkpatrick 
M. Kleiner 
L. Koopman 
N. Lawry 

F. Leforestier 
R. Lentell 
F. Levesque 
H. Lilienthal 
A. Lill 
P. Lipinski 
R. Lovely 
S. Lovely 
A. Mackenzie 
H. MacKenzie 
K. Mackinlay 
C. Mackinnon 
R. Marrs 
N. Marteene 
X. Mathis 
C. Maunder 
N. McDermott 
S. McGovern 
M. Millar 
S. Millar 
T. Millar 
A. Oakes 
S. O'Connell 
B. O'Connor 
M. O'Connor 
B. Pardoen 
D. Passarinho 
L. Patterson 
J. Pearlman 
J. Phillips 
R. Pillinger 
S. Polly 
H. Prowse 
J. Prowse 
S. Prowse 
M. Puddicombe 
J. Reilly 
C. Rigotti 
J. Rowe 
G. Russell 
L. Russell 
R. Ryan 

H. Selby 
A. Short 
O. Signorini 
A. Silva 
B. Smith 
M. Smith 
J. Snook 
P. Solomon 
H. Sparkes 
K. Sparkes 
M. Spears 
N. Spencer 
S. Spicer 
M. Steele 
R. Stevens 
C. Stewart 
R. Stewart 
B. Taylor 
R. Thomas 
S. Thompson 
N. Tompson 
M. Truman 
J. Trumper 
R. Trumper 
A. Truszewski 
G. Virgona 
S. Wagland 
S. Walker 
V. Wallace 
W. Wallace 
S. Wanden 
M. Wasley 
K. Wegenaar 
K. Wegenaar 
D. Wheatley 
V. Whitaker 
C. Whitehead 
M. Wright 
P. Yeadon 
J. Yeomans 

LONG SERVICE MEMBERS 

D. Wagers 
A. Wainwright 
B. Walding 
T. Walton 
A. Wheelahan 
A. Williams 
C. Wilson 
L. Woolley 
D. Wymer 

ACTIVE MEMBERS (18 YRS+) 
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T. Allsop 
J. Baker 
C. Baskerville 
G. Bradley 
L. Bradshaw 
E. Brown 
B. Callard 
C. Callard 
R. Crespel 
I. Crews 
S. Currie 
L. Deane 
K. Dettmann 
M. Edler 
Y. Elboz 
K. Furlong 
E. Gurtata 
A. Handcock 
R. Harvey 
T. Harvey 
G. Hayward Smith 
S. Heaton 
A. Hext 
E. Hicks 
N. Johnston 
A. Lim 
A. Melbourn 
A. Milner 
B. Moran 
M. Morris 
O. Oudhof 
L. Pardoen 
T. Pardoen 
S. Prictor 
M. Puddicombe 
O. Puhl 
M. Quinn 
A. Ramos 
S. Ratcliff 
P. Rees-Evans 
S. Ross 
L. Russell 
M. Ryan 
L. Short 
T. Smith 
S. Spencer 
T. Stack 
G. Stockwell 
G. Stuart 
M. Stuart 
L. Susic 
S. Susic 
J. Swane 
J. Taylor 
Z. Vesely 
M. Wallace 
T. Walsh 
A. Wegenaar 
H. Wegenaar 
N. Weight 
J. Wishart 

R. Baskerville 
D. Fleming 
J. Tier 

AWARD 
MEMBERS 

D. Armitage 
S. Atkins 
R. Carroll 
P. Cartwright 
S. Crichton-Browne 
K. Derz 
J. Ferguson 
P. Murray-Walker 
M. Rebane 
K. Salisbury 
A. Stuart 
M. Vesely 

RESERVE ACTIVE 
MEMBERS 

M. Brown 
H. Crews 
M. Crews 
G. Hill 
S. King 
J. Phippard 
S. Prowse 

PAST ACTIVE 
MEMBERS 

ACTIVE JUNIOR 
MEMBERS 

CADET MEMBERS 

E. Wallace 
E. Warner 
Z. Wasley 
E. Watt 
A. Windsham 

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS 

O. Alker 
A. Armitage 
L. Ashley 
E. Athis 
C. Bardales 
Z. Barrett 
A. Brown 
C. Brown 
S. Brown 
L. Chaffer 
C. Chandler 
O. Clues 
C. Connors 
C. Cox 
S. Cremer 
J. Crews 
B. Crichton-Browne 
W. Curzon 
B. Dacic 
M. Davis 
M. De Vera 
B. Derz 
D. Edmonds 
L. Egan 
K. Elboz 
A. Furlong 
E. Guberina 
M. Hague 
C. Hammond 
N. Hammond 
J. Harvey 
S. Higgs 
H. Hodge 
B. Howison 
S. Howison 
E. Iivonen 
W. Jeffrey 
E. Kennedy 
I. Kennedy 
D. King 
C. Kipa 
E. Koopman 
P. Lamarque 
S. Law 
M. Leforestier 
A. Leonard 
K. Lilienthal 
R. Lovell 
J. Lowe 
E. Mackenzie 
G. Mackinlay 
D. Melbourn 
S. O'Connor 
A. Pardoen 
S. Parsons 
G. Prowse 
M. Slater 
J. Small 
I. Spencer 
F. Truman 
K. Wagland 

K. Derz 
C. Dinnie 
B. Dobeson 
J. Doman 
G. Don 
S. Don 
M. Donnelly 
D. Doyle 
R. Dvorak 
N. Ebrill 
R. Eddington 
S. Edmonds 
L. Ehnbom 
N. Ehnbom 
N. Emirzian 
N. English 
A. Fakhry 
S. Faure 
A. Felker 
D. Felton 
D. Fernandez-
Manzanos 
P. Finocchiaro 
J. Fitchett 
T. Fitzadam 
S. Ford 
M. Fortin-Klinger 
P. Francis 
A. Freedman 
T. Freeman 
E. Furlong 
K. Fylan 
P. Fylan 
J. Gagen 
C. Gazeas 
A. Gill 
C. Gill 
O. Gill 
M. Gillett 
A. Gillis 
S. Girdlestone 
M. Girven 
C. Glasson 
K. Goodchild 
R. Gorrie 
R. Gorrie 
E. Grant 
K. Grant 
M. Gray 
N. Greenwell 
A. Groocoe 

L. Burns 
S. Burton 
S. Byles 
F. Caffarena 
N. Campbell 
R. Campbell 
L. Cardiff 
N. Cattley 
D. Cawley 
V. Chalasani 
D. Chan 
L. Chan 
H. Chapman 
A. Cheah 
E. Cherni 
I. Chinenova 
S. Choi 
S. Choo 
M. Christofides 
M. Christofides 
R. Cleary 
A. Clement 
P. Cliff 
M. Clues 
P. Clues 
J. Cockerill 
J. Collignon 
R. Conway 
K. Cooper 
K. Costello 
B. Couston 
P. Cowan 
H. Creelman 
S. Creelman 
H. Creighton 
D. Cremer 
J. Crouch 
R. Crouch 
M. Crow 
C. Currah-Clarke 
M. Curzon 
J. Czerwinska 
C. Daniels 
I. Davies 
S. Davies 
J. Dawes 
K. Dawson 
H. De farias 
A. De Vos 
G. Dearden 
M. Del Grande 

S. Abbene 
R. Abrahams 
D. Abrahao Junior 
J. Adcock 
K. Ahuja 
S. Ahuja 
J. Albanese 
F. Alker 
T. Allen 
N. Amineau 
V. Andrianov 
P. Anguita 
R. Angus 
L. Armitage 
A. Athis 
M. Badman 
L. Bakey 
B. Barkworth 
A. Barlow 
D. Bennet 
J. Berry 
B. Beudeker 
S. Biasi 
J. Bilbe 
M. Bjelobrk 
R. Black 
G. Blanckenberg 
A. Boesch 
A. Bongiorno 
A. Bongiorno 
A. Booth 
P. Bracken 
A. Brackley 
A. Bradford 
S. Bradley 
K. Branson 
J. Brennan 
E. Brickacek 
R. Brickacek 
C. Briggs 
M. Brooks 
T. Brooks 
J. Brougham 
S. Brown 
M. Browning 
J. Bruce 
G. Bryan 
H. Buchler 
G. Burley 
K. Burley 
N. Burley 



D. Groocoe 
M. Guberina 
M. Gurtata 
N. Gurtata 
D. Hague 
J. Hall 
L. Hallanoro 
M. Hallanoro 
A. Hampshire 
A. Hanoumis 
L. Hanson Byrne 
L. Harris 
N. Harris 
J. Hartigan 
R. Hartigan 
D. Harvey 
E. Harvey 
T. Harvey 
S. Hatton 
R. Hay 
S. Hayes 
R. Hayfield 
J. Hearle 
N. Helm 
D. Hendriks 
A. Henry 
E. Hibbert 
B. Higgs 
C. Hill 
C. Hinton 
W. Hodge 
N. Hodgkinson 
S. Hodgkinson 
M. Hollobon 
C. Howard 
V. Howell 
S. Howison 
P. Hunt 
K. Hunter 
J. Hurlock 
K. Iivonen 
P. Iivonen 
O. Ingber 
D. Inkster 
R. Inkster 
A. Ippolito 
K. Ippolito 
A. Jack 
E. Jacobs 
L. Jayaweera 
K. Jeffrey 
D. Jessup 
O. Johnson 
S. Johnson 
M. Johnston 
A. Jones 
M. Jones 
R. Jones 
S. Jones 
S. Kasprowicz 
W. Kasprowicz 
G. Katz 

J. Katz 
M. Keene 
B. Kelly 
C. Kelly 
S. Kemp 
G. Kennedy 
S. Kesby 
A. Kibby 
J. Kim 
J. Kinghorn 
N. Kingston 
L. Kleiman 
K. Klinger 
G. Koning 
M. Koopman 
K. Kowalczuk 
J. Kowalik 
R. Lafazanis 
S. Lai 
P. Lamphueng 
M. Lane 
A. Langmann 
J. Law 
A. Lawson 
R. Lawson 
M. Le Coq 
J. Lee 
M. Levett 
K. Lewis 
M. Lewis 
Y. Li 
S. Lill 
M. Linney 
S. Linossi-Grove 
C. Liu 
S. Lougher 
M. Loughnan 
J. Lovell 
T. Lovell 
K. Lowe 
V. Lowe 
J. Lu 
H. Lupuche Oviedo 
D. Maben 
C. Macgregor 
P. Macgregor 
K. Mack 
V. Mackett 
M. Mackinlay 
B. Macoun 
M. Maerzinger 
D. Maher 
B. Maike 
W. Maike 
N. Manefield 
D. Manurung 
S. Marker 
B. Marrs 
D. Marshall 
D. Marshall 
M. Martin 
S. Martin 

T. Mayoh 
C. McCann 
S. McGale 
C. McGee 
F. McGourty 
S. McGovern 
K. Mcgrath 
M. Mcgree 
J. Mcilvena 
C. McKay 
A. Mcmanus 
S. Mcnulty 
K. Meares 
C. Melbourn 
T. Melbourn 
S. Melli 
J. Meteyard 
E. Millar 
T. Millard 
P. Miller 
J. Milligan 
S. Milner 
T. Mitton 
P. Moig 
R. Moloney 
H. Monro 
P. Moradi 
A. Moriarty 
J. Morris 
J. T. Morris 
T. Mulligan 
J. Munoz 
N. Murphy 
M. Murray 
D. Mutthumani 
G. Nadeau 
W. Natalegawa 
G. Ng 
A. Nicholls 
A. Nichols 
D. Nichols 
J. Oakley 
A. O'Connell 
C. O'Donoughue 
M. Ognibene 
A. O'Hagan 
M. O'Hanlon 
D. Olsen 
D. O'Neill 
J. O'Neill 
D. O'Shea 
O. Ould 
F. Page 
J. Page 
M. Page 
M. Pakenham 
J. Paling 
C. Palmer 
J. Papara 
K. Pardey 
B. Parkinson 
S. Parsons 

A. Parsons-Pavoni 
C. Paull 
L. Percy 
S. Petrie 
A. Phan 
E. Phillipou 
M. Phillipou 
J. Phippard 
P. Pontello 
S. Ponton 
C. Poole 
O. Poolman 
N. Porteous 
K. Potts 
M. Press 
A. Priestley 
M. Pulis 
Q. Qin 
M. Quax 
M. Quilter 
A. Ramos 
M. Ramos 
R. Ramsay 
H. Redwood 
T. Redwood 
T. Reid 
J. Reiner 
C. Reynolds 
D. Righi 
J. Roper 
S. Rose 
M. Rosic 
V. Rowed 
H. Roxburgh 
K. Rozario 
C. Rutherford 
B. Salaverry 
C. Salem 
D. Samu 
C. Sananes 
A. Sanbrook 
M. Sanderson 
T. Saville 
C. Seaver 
R. Semark 
A. Shamsaria 
B. Shanahan 
J. Shanahan 
A. Shapley 
L. Sharma 
T. Shorney 
R. Shrestha 
N. Sivis 
C. Skelton 
C. Slater 
M. Small 
B. Smith 
G. Smith 
G. M. Smith 
M. Smith 
S. Smith 
S. L. Smith 

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS 
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C. Solis 
J. Soper 
J. Soper 
P. Soper 
M. Sowden 
K. Spencer 
M. Spencer 
H. Spinks 
A. Stanwell 
M. Stedman 
E. Steele 
A. Stephen 
A. Stephen 
M. Sterland 
M. Stevens 
D. Stevenson 
B. Stewart 
K. Stewart 
H. Stival 
B. Stoppel 
R. Stott 
A. Straker 
K. Strickland 
D. Stuckey 
B. Sullivan 
A. Summerton 
J. Sunderland 
D. Susic 
C. Swan 
B. Symons 
C. Symons 
R. Tacadena 
O. Tague 
E. Tamborini 
M. Tamborini 
J. Tan 
V. Tang 
S. Tarmizi 
L. Tassone 
A. Taylor 
D. Taylor 
J. Taylor 
K. Te Pania 
W. Te Pania 
A. Teek 
T. Tester 
S. Thomas 
S. Thomas 
L. Thomson 
A. Tither 
A. Toriggino 
W. Traill 
H. Travis 
S. Troxler 
C. Troy 
T. Turner 
F. Van Caster 
S. Varrall 
A. Vasilangos 
M. Vea 
J. Vicario 
A. Vickery 

A. J. Vickery 
E. Vincent 
L. Vincent 
L. Waite 
T. Wakeman 
A. Walsh 
A. Walsh 
C. Walsh 
G. Walters 
N. Walters 
A. Walton 
M. Walton 
L. Wan 
C. Wang 
J. Ward 
C. Warhurst 
E. Warner 
L. Warner 
B. Watson 
N. Watson 
C. Watt 
S. Watt 
T. Watts 
H. Wentworth 
J. Wessling 
S. Whitbread 
J. Whitehead 
C. Wilson 
G. Wilson 
S. Wilson 
K. Windsham 
C. Wolak 
S. Wood 
E. Wotherspoon 
M. Wotherspoon 
H. Wright 
K. Wu 
N. Young 
T. Zarzavatjian 
C. Zgliniecki 
J. Zhao 
J. Zheng 
D. Zimmer 
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SURF LIFESAVING 

Alex Wye 
Director of  

Surf Lifesaving 

The overall commitment of our surf club’s dedicated voluntary surf lifesavers whilst doing 
their designated patrol duties, was once again of the very highest standard and I would like 
to both thank and congratulate every one of them for giving up of their personal time to 
serve both our surf club, as well as the general public in our local Sydney Northern Beaches 
community.    

Most people are extremely busy these days with their numerous life requirements, including 
family obligations, work and/or school commitments and various other interests.  Therefore, 
this selfless giving of one’s time and efforts voluntarily whilst on rostered patrol duties to 
ensure that North Curl Curl Beach is kept safe during all of the weekends and public  
holidays from the end of September through to the end of April, should never ever be taken 
for granted nor underestimated by anyone. 

North Curl Curl S.L.S.C.  completed the 2020/2021 surf patrol season on Sunday, 25th April, 
2021 with 224 patrolling members (129 males and 95 females), including 160 Bronze  
Medallion holders, 61 Surf Rescue Certificate personnel and 3 Award Members, with this 
being our club’s highest ever combined total of rostered patrolling members.  Of these 224 
patrol members, 109 were 20 years old or over and predominantly male (82 to 27), with 
115 being teenagers and primarily female (68 to 47).  Also, 50 (that is, over 20%) of all of 
our surf club’s patrolling members were 100% patrol efficient for this past 2020/2021  
season, with their names being recorded at the end of this Annual DSL Report. 

The organising and conducting of surf lifesaving activities in any surf club can be a most 
complex and time-consuming task. Therefore, I would like to thank and commend all office 
bearers in our surf club’s surf lifesaving portfolio for their conscientious efforts over this 
past 2020/2021 surf patrol season.  

 

My heartfelt thanks go to  

• Carmel Howard (Club Vice-Captain and First Aid Officer),  

• Greg Stretton (Club Vice-Captain and ATV or SSV Co-ordinator),  

• Matt Truman (IRB Captain)  

• Sarah Wanden (Radio Officer) 

for the exemplary services they have collectively provided over the course of the season. 

 

Also, my sincere appreciation goes to our surf club’s fourteen diligent Patrol Captains, in 
Rhiannon Stevens, Ross Tillman, Carmel Howard, Michael Jones, Simon Spicer, Ben 
Pardoen, Greg Stretton, Jamie Howieson, Andrew Mackenzie, Alan Prictor, Ben Dreghorn, 
Frederic Leforestier, Sarah Wanden and Duncan Grady for their excellent contributions to 
North Curl Curl S.L.S.C. as the leaders of their respective patrol teams. 

With so many outstanding patrol teams in operation, the selection for the Best Patrol Team 
for the 2020/2021 season was once again an extremely difficult decision to make,   
However, for its overall team attitude, commitment, punctuality and performances whilst on 
the beach and at the water’s edge, this prestigious and highly sought after patrol award was 
won by Patrol No. 10, with several other patrol teams coming very close runners up.  

The Mark Watson Memorial Award for the Best Patrol Person of the Season award was most 
deservedly won by Ben Dreghorn on Patrol No. 11.  Ben joined patrols as an SRC (known 
back then as an SLSC) in the 2001/2002 season at the age of 13, has been doing patrols 
continuously since then for the past 20 years and is now a conscientious and diligent Patrol 
Captain.  Ben always arrives very early for patrol, is extremely vigilant whilst on patrol and 
leads by his wonderful example to all patrol team members.  

Andrew Mackenzie (Patrol No. 9) has achieved this past season’s award for the Best Patrol 
Captain due to his very thorough organisation of his patrol team members and facilitation of 
their respective endeavours. Andrew is also acutely aware of how important his patrol 
team’s younger members are and ensures they are always involved and appreciated  - very 
well done, Andrew.  
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“May I please take this 
opportunity to express 

sincere gratitude to all of 
the patrol  

members at North Curly” 



Two seasons ago, two new awards for the Best Junior Male and Female Patrol People were introduced for our surf club’s patrol 
members and the recipients of these awards for the 2020/2021 season were Skye Currie and Jamie Swane.  

Skye who has won this award in consecutive seasons completed 48 patrol hours for the past season and as a Patrol Vice-Captain 
was very focused and pro-active with respect to all of her duties. 

Jamie not only gained his IRB Driver’s license during the course of the season, but also, similar to Skye, displayed a fine attitude 
and commitment towards all of his surf lifesaving endeavours. 

In November, 2022, North Curl Curl S.L.S.C. will be celebrating its 100th Anniversary.  Whilst our surf club has made numerous 
outstanding achievements and gained first class outcomes during its history, the thought of gender inequality still does concern 
me. 

Over the almost 100 years of its existence, there has never been a lady in the Club Captain (or Director of Surf Lifesaving) role.   
Furthermore, currently 45% of our surf club’s patrolling members are female, yet there are currently only three out of fourteen 
lady Patrol Captains (that is, less than 25%) and two out of thirty-six (or less than 6%) lady IRB Drivers.  It is totally appreciated 
and understood that ideally the most suitable person or people should fill the various club roles, irrespective of gender, but  
hopefully over the next decade this noticeable inequality can be rectified. 

As this DSL Annual Report draws to a close, I wish, as usual, to once more thank and acknowledge the members on our surf 
club’s Board of Directors for their fine commitment and for the huge amount of work done by them in the various duties they have 
each needed to perform in their respective portfolios. 

From a personal viewpoint, my gratitude goes to my brother and Club Life Member, Stuart Wye, for both the guidance and assis-
tance that he readily affords me on so many occasions.  Also, my gratitude goes to Lucy Russell (Club Assistant) for her ongoing 
assistance over the 2020/2021 season in providing me with much needed patrol documents and other patrol resources.  

To serve North Curl Curl S.L.S.C. in the role of Director of Surf Lifesaving (or Club Captain) has once again been a huge honour 
and privilege and if it is the wish of our surf club’s members,   

I would very much like to complete the final season of my current four-year tenure in this role during the new upcoming 
2021/2022 surf patrol season. 

Finally, as usual, I wish to acknowledge the accomplishments of my dearly loved mother, Isabella Jessie Wye MBE OAM who was 
and always will be the major inspiration and motivation for everything I do in life, especially within the wonderful domain of  
voluntary surf lifesaving for our cherished surf lifesaving club. 

 

Alex Wye 

Director of Surf Lifesaving  
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Best Patrol Person  
Mark Watson Memorial Award 

Best Patrol Captain 
 

PATROL AWARDS 

TTiimm  BBaallll  

CChhrriiss  BBllaacckkmmoorree  

JJuussttiinn  CCaallllaarrdd  

SSkkyyee  CCuurrrriiee  

CCrraaiigg  DDoobbssoonn  

BBeenn  DDrreegghhoorrnn  

RRyyaann  FFoonnttbbiinn  

GGrreeggoorryy  GGuurrttaattaa  

MMiiaa  HHaagguuee  

NNiicchhoollaass  HHeebbddeenn    

TTiimmootthhyy  HHeexxtt  

PPeetteerr  HHiicckkeeyy  

AAnnddrreeww  HHooffffmmaannnn    

CCaarrmmeell  HHoowwaarrdd  

BBrreetttt  JJeeffffrreeyy  

MMiicchhaaeell  JJoohhnnssttoonn    

EEllllaa  KKooooppmmaann  

LLuuiittzz  KKooooppmmaann  

NNiicchhoollaass  LLaawwrryy  

FFrreeddeerriicc  LLeeffoorreessttiieerr  

AAsshh  LLeeoonnaarrdd  

AAnnddrreeww  MMaacckkeennzziiee  

HHoollllyy  MMaacckkeennzziiee  

KKeevviinn  MMaarrttiinn  

SSttuuaarrtt  MMiillllaarr    

JJooaaqquuiinn  MMuunnoozz  

MMaatttthheeww  OO’’CCoonnnnoorr  

BBeennjjaammiinn  PPaarrddooeenn  

LLuucciiaa  PPaarrddooeenn  

TThhoommaass  PPaarrddooeenn  

LLeeee  PPaatttteerrssoonn  

AAllaann  PPrriiccttoorr  

MMaaxx  PPuuddddiiccoommbbee  

AAnnddrreeww  SShhoorrtt  

DDaanniieellllee  SSiiggnnoorriinnii  

PPeetteerr  SSoolloommoonn  

GGaabbrriieellllaa  SSttuuaarrtt  

RRoossss  TTiillllmmaann  

NNiicckk  TToommppssoonn,,    

MMaatttthheeww  TTrruummaann  

KKaattee  WWaaggllaanndd  

KKuurrtt  WWeeggeennaaaarr    

CCoolliinn  WWiillssoonn  

AAlleexxaannddeerr  WWyyee  

PPhhiilllliipp  YYeeaaddoonn    

DDaavviidd  YYoouunngg  

100% Patrol Efficiency 

BBeenn  DDrreegghhoorrnn    

Best Patrol Team 
Patrol 10 
AAllaann  PPrriiccttoorr  ©©  

MMiicchhaaeell  JJoohhnnssttoonn  ((vvcc))  
JJuussttiinn  CCaallllaarrdd  ((vvcc))  

TTiimm  HHeexxtt  
KKyyllee  IInnkksstteerr  

LLuuccyy//GGuuyy  RRuusssseellll  
MMiicchhaaeell  JJoonneess  
PPeetteerr  SSoolloommoonn  

LLiiaamm  HHoouussee  
SSaamm  PPrriiccttoorr  

NNaatthhaann  JJoohhnnssttoonn  
AAbbbbyy  HHeexxtt                                      
LLiillyy  RRuusssseellll                    
LLuukkee  AAsshhlleeyy                  
BBrryynn  CCaallllaarrdd                  

CChhaarrlliiee  CChhaannddlleerr   

Best Patrol Persons 

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  11  AAsshh  LLeeoonnaarrdd              

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  22  AAddaamm  AAttkkiinnss    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  33  SSoopphhiiaa  SSppeenncceerr    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  44  AAmmeelliiaa  HHaannddccoocckk  

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  55  CCoolliinn  WWhhiitteehheeaadd          

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  66  DDaavviidd  YYoouunngg    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  77  CCrraaiigg  DDoobbssoonn      

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  88  JJeessssiiee  TTaayylloorr    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  99  SSoopphhiiaa  BBrroowwnn    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  1100  TTiimm  HHeexxtt    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  1111  YYaassmmiinn  EEllbboozz    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  1122  SSkkyyee  CCuurrrriiee    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  1133  SSoopphhiiee  MMccGGoovveerrnn    

PPaattrrooll  NNoo  1144  NNiicckk  HHeebbddeenn    

AAnnddrreeww  MMaacckkeennzziiee    
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EDUCATION 

Brett Jeffrey 
Director of  
Education 

In a season like no other, we can be extremely proud of the way the education team at 
North Curl Curl responded to the challenges at a club, branch and state level. In my first 
year in the role of Director of Education I could not have hoped to work with a more talent-
ed, passionate and dedicated group of trainers, facilitators and assessors who have  
delivered some fantastic outcomes for the members of North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving 
Club.    

I must give a special thanks to the amazing Clare Hagon for her tireless efforts and  
dedication in her pursuit for positive educational outcomes for every member of North 
Curl Curl. Over the last twelve months Clare’s skills and experience has helped in the up-
skilling of our Training Team in the new SRC and Bronze course content and resources. 
The new course includes more online and interactive components. She has also undertak-
en training through Surf Lifesaving NSW, in the new mode of delivery – Canvas online - for 
the Training Officers Certificate, which Clare facilitates at a Branch level. I would also like 
to personally thank her for the warm welcome I received upon commencing this role and 
her patience and support in getting me up to speed the fastest possible way. 

Season 2020/21 saw a number of changes in the education space, including course  
content, the way courses are delivered and changes to the way we maintain member 
skills through the annual proficiency process. Delivering these changes with the backdrop 
of COVID-19 proved challenging for many, however, I must thank each and every member 
of our education team for the manner in which they were able to implement these  
changes, ensuring a COVID-safe environment with positive member outcomes. 

North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 

Skills maintenance & keeping our members proficient 
With a number of SLS member services moving to the online world, 2020/21 saw an increased usage of the e-learning plat-
form in the delivery of content. This season involved some significant changes in the skills maintenance process, including the 
migration of a number of key outcomes online, enabling our assessors and delegate assessors to re-imagine how they con-
ducted this season’s skills maintenance / proficiency sessions. Over six weekends, from late October through to December, 
our assessors ran 24 Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC), Bronze and IRB proficiency sessions and three ART proficiency sessions. 
Scheduled to coincide with the change-over of patrol teams each weekend allowed the team to conduct these sessions in a 
COVID-safe manner while also capturing members before or after their patrol. While this increased the pressure on the greater 
education team, the feedback from members has been overwhelmingly positive and the lessons learned will enable us to re-
fine next seasons program.  

A special thanks must go to the team who delivered these sessions including —  Steven Atkins, Phil Godbee, Clare Hagon, Mi-
chael Jones, Frederic Leforestier, Ray Merton, Matt O'Connor, Lucy Russell, Anna Silva, Natasha Spencer, Matt Truman, Sarah 
Wanden, Alex Wye and David Young for their amazing efforts this season in ensuring we overcame the challenges and com-
pleted our skills maintenance program.  
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EDUCATION 

Delivering SLS award courses 
During a disrupted season at North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club, we were able to continue to deliver training courses for our 
club members. Providing opportunities to be trained in the skills required to be Life Savers, continues at the heart of what we 
deliver as a Surf Life Saving Club. Through the season the education team, including Steven Atkins in the role of lead Bronze 
and IRB trainer, Clare Hagon, Michael Jones, Ray Merton, Tony Tier, Sarah Wanden, Michael Wasley and Alex Wye continued 
the proud education tradition at North Curl Curl.  

Season 2020-2021 saw the provision of award courses in SRC, Bronze Medallion, Senior First Aid, IRB Driver and IRB Crew  
Certificates. This included a trial of an intensive SRC course facilitated by Tony Tier and Michael Wasley during the term three 
school holiday period, the completion of SRC and Bronze Medallion courses that had been on hold since February (led by Ste-
ven Atkins), changes to the delivery of First Aid renewals and the incorporation of an SRC course into the under 14 nipper pro-
gram as a bridge into the senior club. 

I am pleased to report that despite this season’s challenges, award attainment remained strong, including: 

• Surf Rescue Certificate: 32 members 

• Bronze Medallion: 28 members  

• IRB crew: 1 member  

• Silver Medallion IRB driver: 3 members 

• Training Officer Bronze medallion: 1 member 

• Provide First Aid: 65 members (including renewals) 

 

One of the areas I am passionate about is capturing the expertise we have in the Club to assist in the training and development 
of our members. During the course of the season, the education team were fortunate to benefit from the skills and experience 
of subject matter experts to assist in skill development across various SLS disciplines. These fellow members included: Saul 
Brown, David Jones, Frederic Leforestier, Matt O'Connor, Glenn Slater, Matt Truman, Vanessa Wallace, William Wallace, Kurt 
Wegenaar and David Young. A special thanks also to Maryanne Troop and Gary Beauchamp from First Aid plus. Their close  
association with the education team and the facilitation of the Provide First Aid certification aligned with our Bronze Medallion 
courses and the renewal of existing award holders to ensure our patrolling members are set-up for success.  

A Special Mention 
During the course of the season many of our education team were active across the Branch in an assessor capacity, support-
ing the certification of Sydney Northern Beaches members in SLS awards, including: Steven Atkins, Clare Hagon, Ray Merton, 
Tony Tier and Michael Wasley. 

One course we were unable to pick-up where we left off after the COVID break was the Gold Medallion group who were almost 
ready to face the rigors of assessment as the world went into lockdown. With the amount of work that went into getting to that 
point it would be awesome to see that group re-convene in the future when they are ready and attain their award. 

Finally, from myself and the education team, thank you to David Wymer and the North Curl Curl SLSC Board for their assistance 
through the season. Their knowledge, strategic thinking and encouragement is an asset to our club, and I look forward to a 
successful season ahead. 

North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 



2020/2021 Surf Life Saving Awards  

SSRRCC  
 OOlliivviiaa  AAllkkeerr  

CCiiaarraa  BBaarrddaalleess  
  ZZaakk  BBaarrrreetttt  

  SSoopphhiiaa  BBrroowwnn  
  OOlliivviiaa  CClluueess  

  CCaatthheerriinnee  CCoonnnnoorrss  
RReemmyy  CCrreessppeell  

WWiilllliiaamm  CCuurrzzoonn  
  BBeeaauu  DDaacciicc  

  MMaarrccrriissssee  DDee  VVeerraa  
BBrrooookkee  DDeerrzz  
  LLeexxii  FFuurrlloonngg  

  EEmmiillyy  GGuubbeerriinnaa  
  CCaassss  HHaammmmoonndd  
  NNiiaahh  HHaammmmoonndd  
  SSaammuueell  HHiiggggss  

  LLeeoo  HHiillll  
  HHaannnnaahh  HHooddggee  
  BBrraaiitthh  HHoowwiissoonn  

  WWiillll  JJeeffffrreeyy  
  EErriiccaa  KKeennnneeddyy  

  IIrreellaanndd  KKeennnneeddyy  
PPiieerrrree  LLaammaarrqquuee  

SSeeaann  LLaaww  
  MMaarrlloonn  LLeeffoorreessttiieerr  

RRuubbyy  LLoovveellll  
JJoosshhuuaa  LLoowwee  

  EElliissssaa  MMaacckkeennzziiee  
DDoommiinniiqquuee  MMeellbboouurrnn  

SSiieennnnaa  OO''CCoonnnnoorr  
SSuummmmeerr  PPaarrssoonnss  

  MMaaccyy  SSllaatteerr  
  FFrraannkkiiee  TTrruummaann  

  EEvvee  WWaatttt  

BBrroonnzzee  
 TTaalliiaa  AAllllssoopp  

CChhaarrlleess  BBaasskkeerrvviillllee  
  GGaabbrriieellllee  BBrraaddlleeyy  

  NNaatthhaann  BBuurrkkee  
  JJoosshh  CCoollllaarrdd  
  JJaaccoobb  CCrreewwss  

  MMaarrcceell  DDee  VVeerraa  
  TTaarraa  HHaarrvveeyy  

  NNaatthhaann  JJoohhnnssttoonn  
  DDyyllaann  KKiinngg  

  JJaassmmiinnee  KKiirrkkppaattrriicckk  
  AAsshh  LLeeoonnaarrdd  
  KKaaii  LLiilliieenntthhaall  

  AAllyyssssaa  LLiimm  
  JJoosshhuuaa  PPhhiilllliippss  

  RRiicchhaarrdd  PPiilllliinnggeerr  
  OOsskkaarr  PPuuhhll  
  MMaaxx  QQuuiinnnn  
  JJoosshh  SSmmaallll  

GGaabbrriieellllaa  SSttuuaarrtt    
  JJeessssiiee  TTaayylloorr  
ZZiikkoo  VVeesseellyy  

  EElliissee  WWaallllaaccee  
  TTiiffffaannyy  WWaallsshh  
  EEllllaa  WWaarrnneerr  

  HHaannnneekkee  WWeeggeennaaaarr  
  NNaatthhaann  WWeeiigghhtt 

  
FFiirrsstt  AAiidd  
 TTaalliiaa  AAllllssoopp  

  JJeetthhrroo  BBaakkeerr  
  CChhaarrlleess  BBaasskkeerrvviillllee  
  RRiicchhaarrdd  BBaasskkeerrvviillllee  
  GGaarryy  BBeeaauucchhaammpp  

  AAlllliissoonn  BBiillbbooww  
  GGaabbrriieellllee  BBrraaddlleeyy  

  NNaatthhaann  BBuurrkkee  
  JJuussttiinn  CCaallllaarrdd  
  JJoosshh  CCoollllaarrdd  
  JJaaccoobb  CCrreewwss 

CChhaarrlloottttee  CCuulllluumm  
MMaarrcceell  DDee  VVeerraa  

JJoohhnn  DDeeaannee  
  LLaauurreenn  DDeeaannee  
  LLaacchhllaann  DDooyyllee  
  YYaassmmiinn  EEllbboozz  
  MMaarrkk  GGiillbbeerrtt  
  CCllaarree  HHaaggoonn  
  SStteevvee  HHaaggoonn  

  AAmmeelliiaa  HHaannddccoocckk  
  TTaarraa  HHaarrvveeyy  

  JJuussttiinnee  HHaayywwaarrdd  SSmmiitthh      
SSaamm  HHeeaattoonn  
  TTiimmootthhyy  HHeexxtt  

AAnnddrreeww  HHooffffmmaannnn  
  CCaarrmmeell  HHoowwaarrdd  
JJaammeess  HHoowwiieessoonn  

  BBrreetttt  JJeeffffrreeyy  
  MMiicchhaaeell  JJoohhnnssttoonn  

  MMiicchhaaeell  JJoonneess  
  MMiicchhaaeell  KKeennnnyy  

  DDyyllaann  KKiinngg  
  EElllliiee  KKiinnoosshhiittaa  

JJaassmmiinnee  KKiirrkkppaattrriicckk  
AAlllleenn  LLaakkeemmaann  
  AAsshh  LLeeoonnaarrdd  
  KKaaii  LLiilliieenntthhaall  

  AAllyyssssaa  LLiimm  
  RRaayy  MMeerrttoonn  
  MMaayyaa  MMiillllaarr  
  SSttuuaarrtt  MMiillllaarr  

  BBeennjjaammiinn  PPaarrddooeenn  
  LLeeee  PPaatttteerrssoonn  
  JJoosshhuuaa  PPhhiilllliippss  
RRiicchhaarrdd  PPiilllliinnggeerr  

  MMaaxx  QQuuiinnnn  
  BBrryynn  RRuusssseellll  
  MMaarryy  RRyyaann  

  LLaacchhllaann  SShhoorrtt  
  JJoosshh  SSmmaallll  

  OOssccaarr  JJ  SSmmiitthh  
  CChhrriiss  SSppaarrkkeess  

  HHaayylleeyy  SSppaarrkkeess  
  KKaarreenn  SSppaarrkkeess  
SSoopphhiiaa  SSppeennccee  
MMaatttthheeww  SStteeeellee  
  GGaabbrriieellllaa  SSttuuaarrtt  

  JJaammiiee  SSwwaannee  

JJeessssiiee  TTaayylloorr  
  NNiicckk  TToommppssoonn  

  ZZiikkoo  VVeesseellyy  
  EElliissee  WWaallllaaccee  
  TTiiffffaannyy  WWaallsshh  
  EEllllaa  WWaarrnneerr  

DDoommiinniiqquuee  WWaasslleeyy  
HHaannnneekkee  WWeeggeennaaaarr  

  NNaatthhaann  WWeeiigghhtt  
  CCoolliinn  WWhhiitteehheeaadd  

  CCoolliinn  WWiillssoonn  
  BBrraadd  WWooooddwwaarrdd  
  AAlleexxaannddeerr  WWyyee  
  DDaavviidd  YYoouunngg  

  

IIRRBB  CCrreeww  
CCeerrttiiffiiccaattee  

  WWiilllliiaamm  TTee  PPaanniiaa  

  

SSiillvveerr  MMeeddaalllliioonn  
IIRRBB  DDrriivveerr  
 CCrraaiigg  DDoobbssoonn  

TThhoommaass  PPaarrddooeenn  
  JJaammiiee  SSwwaannee  

 

SSiillvveerr  MMeeddaalllliioonn  
BBeeaacchh    

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  
 NNiicchhoollaass  HHeebbddeenn  
  SSiillvviiaa  TThhoommppssoonn  

  PPhhiilliipp  YYeeaaddoonn  
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JUNIOR ACTIVITIES 

John Vickery 
Director of  

Junior Activities 

Wow what a season! NSW State Champions for the second year running, 700+ Nipper  
registered, 25 new Sunday Age managers and 50+ weekly Age Marshals, countless  
competition parents’ helpers all making the season 2020 – 2021 the best yet across both 
Sunday & the Competition Arenas. 

In a season where other clubs restricted their intake numbers to cope with the Covid  
compliance, we welcomed the overflow from other clubs and embraced the challenges that 
were thrown at us across Sunday Nipper Activities and the new procedures at the carnivals.  

For the second year running North Curl Curl Nippers reigned as the Northern Beaches 
Branch and NSW State Champions with a well prepared and highly motivated group of kids.   

The entire nipper program was faced with overall COVID governance from the Northern 
Beaches SLSA Branch and NSW health guidelines which only galvanised our resolve to hold 
nippers and present a program that improved surf survival skills and enjoyment across the 
board.    

Many people stepped up into demanding roles in this new climate of social distancing and 
restrictions that challenge the normal and presented new operating procedures in both 
arenas.  

I wanted to firstly thank everyone from “mum and dad gear/ travel and everything else  
stewards”, to the countless, coaches, carnival officials, water safety, Age Managers, Age  
Marshals, parents and finally the kids themselves who all performed tremendously  
throughout a trying season of new world challenges, making North Curl Curl SLSC Nippers 
the Number 1 Club that it has become. 

TThhee  SSttaattss  

• 2020-2021 total Nippers Registered 704 (Just shy of last year's 710, a noteworthy 
achievement in a Covid environment  

• 466 Families 

• 557 Adult Parent/ Guardian Registrations 

• 113 Nippers attended a SNB Carnival 

• 31% of Eligible aged Nippers attended a SNB Carnival 

• 220 Nipper Parent Awards – 63 of these being Bronze Medallions  

• 82 State Nipper Competitors 

• 62 State Finals Results 

• 1st NSW State Age Nipper Championships 

• 1St Sydney Northern Beaches Age Nipper Branch Championships  

• 184 Sydney NB Branch Medals - Individual & Teams      

This year our Preliminary Proficiency Pool Swim was held at our new sponsor Narelle  
Simpson’s NS Swim School in Brookvale. With a last-minute change of plans of plans, 
Narelle generously donated her facility to the Club, and with generous support from all the 
families we raised over $500 for her chosen charity Variety Club Australia, helping kids with 
cancer.  

We kicked off the season the same big weekend with Age Manager training and Saturday 
afternoon Nippers for the Under 6’s, welcoming all the new incoming families with fun  
activities and an intro to the Club social environment.  

What followed was two perfect weather Sundays, with water areas in full operation and the 
kids back into the swing of it. The second Sunday nippers we invited James Griffin State MP 
for Manly along to officially open the season and run him through all of our COVID action 
compliance plans, with James commenting that “we had set the bar for all other clubs to 
follow”. 

“Thank you to our 
amazing Age 

Managers” 
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U06 Chris Maunder 

U06 Kim Lawry 

U06 Myra Badman 
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U07 Aaron B-Rouse 

U08 Joss Paling 
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U09 Chris Maunder 

U09 Nick Lawry 

U09 Chris  Skelton 

U10 Nigel Murphy 

U11 Mike Girven 

U11 Greg Virgona 

U12 Madeline Keene 

U12 Adam Vickery 

U12 David Mutthumani 
U13 Chris Warhurst 

U14 Justin Barrett 

U14 Stuart Wagland 



JUNIOR ACTIVITIES 
The roller coaster ride of new restrictions and lockdowns saw us having to cancel several social events including the “Welcome 
to Summer Season party” and the “Christmas Nipper Day” activities however on a Nipper activities level, the new Age Manager 
and Age Marshal organisation model saw us have a cracking first club championships of the season with all the kids having a 
ball and seeing us back in the sheds well ahead of scheduled time.  

Christmas COVID Lockdown hit next costing us 2 additional weeks of NO Nippers over the school holidays before we kicked into 
gear again and got set for the Branch Titles at Palm Beach. 

In the competition arena Beach Coaches, Sophie McGovern, Mike Girven and Water Coaches, Michael Clues, Andrew Dennehy, 
Sean Davis & Ross Chaffer’s training programs were second to none. Look at these results, all coaches deserve a massive 
thankyou and congratulations, well done.   

It’s a ‘Big Team’ with lots of people to thank.  All this achievement is really the product of unseen dedication in many areas of the 
whole Nipper’s tribe and bred from years of North Curly culture being developed by the many characters of the Club colours. It 
goes without saying that these individuals make a whole team environment tick, and when the glue is good it all sticks.  
 
Firstly, thank you to Mr President, Dave Wymer, and the Board of Directors who gave the JAC team full support all season with 
any request, well done in sometimes a thankless job.  

TThhee  JJAACC  TTeeaamm  aanndd  mmyy  CCoo--vvoolluunntteeeerrss..    

• Madeline Keene now 9 years deep into her career as Age Manager Coordinator. Big hugs and thanks and for hubby  
Stuart’s backing and blessing.  

• Andrew Stuart the silent Yoda of NCC knowledge and passion for all things Surf Club, without Andrew the statistics on the 
ground would not exist, along with gear stewardship, Sunday Intro Group training, Nipper Admin and many of the  
laborious jobs that make an organisation tick. Big thanks. 

• Nick Lawry Under 9 Lead Age Manager, 9-10 Competition Age Manager and all-round council on the JAC.  

• the team of new and old Age Managers and Age Marshals that fronted up week after week, listening to me blasting out 
orders on the loud haler and then got stuck in to teaching the kids everything they know about Surf Lifesaving. 

A special mention for Yellow Group Trainer Jason Elboz, who quietly goes about his work, training up the competitors of  
tomorrow, teaching the kids how to paddle and negotiate the surf. We thank you. 

To all of the Water Safety Crew throughout the season, the kids feel at ease with you there and for that matter, so do I knowing 
there are eyes everywhere to make it as safe as possible.  

The entire Coaching Team for the carnival kids was headed by Glenn Slater, Michael Clues, Andrew  Dennehy, Mike Girvan, So-
phie McGovern, Justine Hayward-Smith and Rhonda Lycett. 

The Uniform guys and gals, What a team! Anyone that can organise, sell and administer to over 700+ nippers’ multiple items of 
kit, is worth their weight in gold.  

To Julie Tassone, our Registrar, none of this happens without first registering all the families and kids. 700 is a massive effort, 
Julie, we thank you.  

FFiinnaall  WWoorrddss    

It is safe to say that the North Curl Curl Nippers 2021 is in great shape, with an awesome bunch of kids both competitively and 
Sunday’s finest. 

All this is owed greatly to a massive team effort across the board from a community of people having a blast at one of the pretti-
est and safest beaches on the east coast of Australia.  

Well done and see you all on the beach next season. 
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JUNIOR ACTIVITIES 
Branch Results 
Perception is reality! The feedback from officials and other club representatives was NCC competitors are respectful to fellow & 
other club competitors, polite & thankful to officials, and were obviously having fun. Hard not to have fun when surrounded by 
NCC supporters cheering their friends on.  

A couple of the highlights where the North Curl Curl U10 Female board competitors winning 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th & 6th + gold in 
beach relays, flags, and R&R are just some examples of our remarkable talent coming home with 697 points. 159 points in front 
of our nearest rival. 

There are so many great results from our 48 Beach and 77 Water competitors, the stats tell the story. 

The NSW State Titles Wrap - The Junior State Titles for 2021 looked vastly different to those held in 2020, but that didn’t 
change the result. In another dominant team display. North Curl Curl Nippers retained the NSW State title by an impressive mar-
gin. 

Despite the disruptions to the 2021 season due to COVID restrictions, North Curly once again sent a well-prepared team of kids 
north to defend their title. While NCC arrived with a reputation for an immensely strong water team, this year saw the emergence 
of a competitive Beach and R&R team as well, coached and managed by Mike Girvan, Sophie McGovern, Justine Hayward-Smith 
and Rhonda Lycett. This presence allowed NCCs U9s-11s to build the points score in and out of the water on Days 1 and 2,  
under the watchful and occasionally teary eye of their coach, Andrew ‘Dinky’ Dennehy. 

In some of the most challenging surf conditions seen at Swansea at State. Thursday provided thrills, spills, tears and laughter 
for the NCC Young Guns as they took on powerful surf that would’ve tested the most experienced of Open competitors. There 
were incredible performances from the brave group of NCC U9s, where it was a badge of honour just to get out and around the 
cans. The next generation of NCC Nippers showed they have the heart and the determination to represent their club in the years 
ahead. Across the 10s and 11s, the gold rush began for NCC and that would continue throughout the 4 days of competition. 
Friday was Team Day for the U9s-11s and with improving surf conditions, we saw just where NCC’s strength lies. Across the age 
groups, points started accumulating as the Green and Gold continually crossed the line in point scoring positions. With the Jun-
iors having set the tone, it was time for the Senior Nippers to follow their lead on Saturday and Sunday...and boy did they deliver. 
With some outstanding performances in the individual events, NCC went into the lead in early competition on Saturday morning 
and were never headed. Izzy Higgs secured her first State individual medal, securing bronze in the Board, against a stellar field 
of NSW competitors. NCC Head Coach, Michael ‘Cluesy’ Clues summed up what it meant when he said, “To see that smile and 
see her parents in tears, that’s everything to me”. Dominant duo, Olivia Clues and Dominique Melbourn completed a clean 
sweep from U11 to U14s in the Board Rescue. It was an outstanding performance from these NCC stalwarts and alongside their 
team mates, the Overall point score victory was settled. Our director of Surf Sports, Glenn Slater is fond of saying ‘Everyone is a 
someone at North Curly’ and this has never been more evident in 2020/21, as so many people played a role in bringing the title 
back to NCC; from behind the scenes organisation, to age managers, water safety, officials, kit organisers, trailer pullers, tent 
erectors, parents getting the kids to training and of course, the coaches. Without this huge team of people working together, 
these champion kids couldn’t do what they did.  

But the last words go to “Cluesy”: “Our whole club culture is about the kids enjoying themselves. If they enjoy it, they’ll stay in 
the Club and that makes our whole community much better. Medals are just a bonus.” But what a bonus… 
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JUNIOR ACTIVITIES 
NNiippppeerrss  BBeeaacchhiieess    
The beachies trained hard this year to get heaps of great results on the sand. Special mention to Mike Girven for stepping up 
this year to help with the coaching and at carnivals! 
 
BBrraanncchh  
The main highlight of branch was seeing so many North Curly nippers down at North Narrabeen to support the beach events. 
The relays were the most successful with almost every race having multiple North Curl Curl teams, many of which won medals. It 
was also great seeing some giving the beach events a go for the first time and hopefully they’ll be keen enough to join us again 
next year. 
 
SSttaattee  
Despite only having a small team of 13 competitors for the beach events, it was one of the most successful states. 10 finals 
were made, with 3 medals won – 2 for Sofia and 1 for Erin!  
Unfortunately, without being able to run up age groups for the relays we only had enough for one relay but they did a great job, 
narrowly missing a medal to come fourth. It was definitely a fun time being under the North Curly tent with everyone warming up 
together for their events and staying long after they’d finished competing to cheer on the others – and to help finish off any left-
over lollies! These were our State Highlights -  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Second Club Championships was held in late January and was a huge success with all the kids competing enjoying a  
challenging swell and beautiful sunny day.  
 
With the season winding down we had an awesome U6-U7 BBQ afternoon presenting certificates and medals for  
participation.  
 
The last Nippers fun activities & presentation day became a washout, due to a huge storm front hitting the beach, sending the 
presentation day indoors. 
 
We celebrated many great achievements both across Sunday Nippers and the Competition teams , with trophies being handed 
out from the 2020 & 2021 seasons and we all managed to squeeze in a soggy sausage sandwich with the weather pelting us 
from all sides.    

Sofia Ehnbom (U11)  1st  Flags,  3rd Sprint 

Erin Fitchett (U9) 3rd Flags 

Finn Bailey (U11)  4th Flags, 5th Sprint 

Oliver Sanbrook (U12) 5th Flags 

Henry Troy (U13)  6th Sprint 

Josh Lowe(U14)  8th Flags 

Sebastien Hill (U12) 7th 1km Run 

Finn Bailey, Sofia Ehnbom, Aria Grven, Isaac Lill (U11) 4th Mixed Relay 
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Marketing  

Saul Brown 
Director of  
Marketing 

It’s a pleasure to report on the activities in the marketing and sponsorship portfolio and 
team for the 2020/21 season. As a keen surf lifesaver at various clubs over forty years I 
have enjoyed my first year on the board at North Curly. The range, number and dynamism 
of member and community services that the Club supports and delivers each season is 
really outstanding and a credit to everyone involved, especially our volunteer members.  A 
family club, with participation across generations, in a diverse range of activities and a 
community orientation, while staying true to the volunteer ethos of surf lifesaving, is in my 
view what makes North Curly so special and something we should all be proud of. 

We are fortunate to have a number of generous sponsors who get right behind the Club’s 
ambitions to support this ethos and broad range of activities. This season, despite the dis-
ruptions of COVID, a number of our long-term sponsors again stepped up to support the 
Club in generous ways, as well as a number of new sponsors that have got behind the Club 
this season. We are most grateful to all of our sponsors – who are recognised at the start of 
this annual report.  Thank you! and we look forward to your ongoing support and relation-
ship.  

Sponsorship is one of our major revenue items and we couldn’t do everything we do with-
out this support. If you can use, support, thank or recommend our sponsors please do – or 
give them a comment on social media when you get the chance.  

Beyond sponsorship the marketing team has been working to better capture, communicate 
and promote all aspects of life at North Curl Curl SLSC. Much of our communications is now 
done via social media as well as via the Team App, and the marketing team is lucky to have 
the expertise of Branca Salaverry and Manuela Curzon leading our work in this area. The 
multi-talented Peta Fairlie has been our social media manager and has done a fantastic job 
in capturing life at North Curly on our Facebook and Instagram pages, as well as everything 
else she does at the Club.  

Finally, Brad Higgs has been looking out for government and other grant opportunities for 
us this season and it is exciting to report that we have just won a $30,000 grant to install a 
solar and battery solution at our club that will save us close to $10,000 a year and make 
our energy usage almost 100% renewable. Thanks to the NSW Government for the grant 
funding as well as SLSNSW and Northern Beaches Council for the support with our applica-
tion. The installation should be taking place with a local supplier in the coming months. 

Congratulations to everyone that has contributed to another safe and enjoyable surf  
lifesaving season at North Curl Curl! 
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SURF SPORTS 

Glenn Slater 
Director of  
Surf Sports 

AAnnootthheerr  sseeaassoonn  ooff  cchhaalllleennggeess,,  nnoo  bbuusshhffiirreess  jjuusstt  CCOOVVIIDD  aanndd  ffllooooddss  bbuutt  wwee  hhaadd  BBrraanncchh,,  SSttaattee  
aanndd  AAuussssiieess  CChhaammppiioonnsshhiippss!!  

This season was a season of firsts for our club highlighted by -  

1St place - NCC at the NSW State Age Nippers Championships (back-to-back from 
2019) 

1st Place - NCC Overall Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Champions  
1st Place - NCC Sydney Northern Beaches Age Nippers Branch Championships (3 years 

in a row) 
1st Place - NCC Sydney Northern Beaches Masters Branch Championships 
2nd Place - NCC Sydney Northern Beaches Opens Branch Championships 
2 x Open Boat Crews competing in Ocean Thunder Series (Open Men’s and Open  

Women’s) 
 

CClluubb  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  iinn  CCooaacchhiinngg  SSttrruuccttuurree  PPaayyiinngg  DDiivviiddeennddss  

The continued investment in our Surf Sports Coaching infrastructure is paying dividends 
with a clear improvement at all levels of development including beginner Nippers, our 
beach  sprinters (1&2km runners),  Junior R&R teams, U15’s , U17’s particularly our ski 
paddlers and our Boat Crews. 

This investment is creating stronger more water capable lifesavers with ever-increasing 
numbers of nippers now completing their SRC and beginning their “voluntary surf lifesaving 
patrol” career, and a number of new boat rowers obtaining their bronze qualifications sig-
nificantly contributing to the overall health of our club’s patrolling numbers. 

Particularly pleasing is that our U17 and U19 surf sports competitor numbers are also in-
creasing rather than decreasing which has been the previous trend. This retention allows 
these members to gain more valuable patrolling experience and contribute to broader club 
life, vital for the long-term sustainability of our club. 

A clear example of our how our program is developing is the NCC attendance numbers at 
the recent Youth Australian Titles. In 2019 NCC had 4 representatives, in 2021, NCC had 
22 representatives. 

OOppeennss  BBrraanncchh  ––  PPaallmm  BBeeaacchh  ––  WWaatteerr  

A big and mean surf greeted the Opens at Palm Beach. FFoorr  tthhee  ffiirrsstt  ttiimmee  iinn  hhiissttoorryy,,  we had 
2 teams enter the Lifesaver relay with one qualifying for the State and Aussie Champs 

Our numbers in 14 & 15 youth were particularly strong as was our U17 and U19 Female 
Teams which contributed to our strongest ever overall position in for nearly 25 years – WWee  
ppllaacceedd  sseeccoonndd  ttoo  NNeewwppoorrtt,,  wwiitthh  MMaannllyy  33rrdd..    

Our fantastic results again could not have been achieved if our members did not back up at 
the Beach branch titles and race in as many beach events as possible, Flags, Sprints, re-
lays , 1 & 2km relays. 

“ Everybody is a 
‘somebody’ at North 

Curly SLSC”  
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SURF SPORTS 

 
 

BBrraanncchh  MMaasstteerrss  ––  PPaallmm  BBeeaacchh  WWaatteerr    

This year we doubled our numbers with debutants Elijah Paling, Saul Brown, Mick Crews, Shane Howison, Kurt Wegenaar and 
Jason Elboz, joining David Jones, Mario Vesely, Andrew Stuart, Spider Atkins  and myself, battling pouring rain, bluebottles and 
ugly surf. We had a great time, with our Beach Competitors contributing to a hhiissttoorryy  mmaakkiinngg  11sstt  ppllaaccee  iinn  OOvveerraallll  MMaasstteerrss  SSNNBB  
ppooiinntt  ssccoorree. Next season we hope to double our numbers again especially in the Female Masters area. 

OOppeennss  SSttaattee  ––  BBllaacckkssmmiitthhss  BBeeaacchh  NNeewwccaassttllee  

Largely the same team as Branch competed at State with the exception of our U14’s due to Covid restrictions. A  very pleasing 
State Open titles for the Club, with so many more semi-finals , finals and top 6 placings than previous years, plenty of 4th’s & 
5th’s with highlights being - 
 

 
 

MMaasstteerrss  SSttaattee  ––  BBllaacckkssmmiitthhss  BBeeaacchh  

A small team represented NCC in absolutely freezing conditions, driving rain and no surf. Kurt Wegenaar competed in his first  
State Masters grabbing a 4th in the 2km beach run for his age. With stalwarts DJ and Spider we all managed to keep reasonably 
warm with race highlights being: 

 
 

AAuussttrraalliiaann  YYoouutthh  CChhaammppiioonnsshhiippss  ––  MMaarroooocchhyyddoorree  QQlldd  

When the coaches sat back and looked at the results we were super proud to share that every one of our 22 athletes who rep-
resented NCCSLSC at the 2021 Youth Australian Championships made an Australian Final..... this is a fantastic achievement 
and one we should all celebrate! (On several occasions we had 2 teams in the final)……bring on Perth 2022! 

  

UU1144  &&  1155  FFeemmaallee    
 

Olivia Clues, Dom Melbourn, Brooke Derz, Ruby Lovell, 
Georgie Prowse, Sophia Brown, Ella Warner, Elise Wal-
lace, Ashleigh Windsham    
 

  

UU1144  &&  1155  MMaallee    
  

Luke Chaffer, Zac Wasley, Sean X, Casey Brown, Aiden 
Armitage, Braith Howison, Sam Higgs, Jake Crews, Dyl-
an King, Luke Egan & Brayden Creighton-Brown 

  

UU1177  FFeemmaallee    
 

Gabby Bradley, Talia Allsop, Tara Harvey, Tiffany Walsh, 
Maya Morris , Abigail Milner & Hanneke Wegenaar 
 

  

UU1177  MMaallee    
  

Ollie Oudenoff, Zeko Vesely, Isaac Crews 

  

UU1199  FFeemmaallee  
 

Maddy Wallace, Annalise Melbourn, Charli Brown, Re-
becca Harvey & Amelia Wegenaar 
 

  

UU1199  MMaallee    
  

Mitch Stuart 

OOppeenn  MMeenn''ss - Michael Jones and Dale Finch  

HHaannnneekkee  WWeeggeennaaaarr – Gold U17 Female 2km beach run ZZiikkoo  VVeesseellyy – Silver U17 male ski 
  

CChhaarrllii  BBrroowwnn – Bronze Open Female surf race & U19 
Female Surf Belt 
 

IIssaaaacc  CCrreewwss  – Bronze U17 Male surf belt race 
   

  

CCaasseeyy  BBrroowwnn – Bronze U15 Male 2km beach run 
  

EEllllaa  WWaarrnneerr//AAsshhlleeyy  WWiinnddsshhaamm//EElliissee WWaallllaaccee – Bronze 
U15 female Cameron relay 
 

  

LLuukkee  CChhaaffffeerr  //  BBrraaddeenn  CCrreeiigghhttoonn--bbrroowwnn//JJaakkee  CCrreewwss//  
LLuukkee  EEggaann  – Bronze U15 Male swim teams 
 

   

AAnnddrreeww  SSttuuaarrtt 
Gold – 55-59 Male 2km beach run 
Silver – 150 Male Taplin Relay 
Bronze – 150 Male  Board Relay 

MMaarriioo  VVeesslleeyy 
Silver – 50-54 Male Single Ski 
Silver – 150 Male Taplin Relay 
Bronze – 50-54 Male Double Ski 

GGlleennnn  SSllaatteerr 
Silver – 150 Male Taplin Relay 
Bronze – 50-54  Male Rescue tube 
Bronze – 50-54  Male Board race 
Bronze – 150 Male  Board Relay 
Bronze – 50-54 Male Double Ski 

  

SSaauull  BBrroowwnn 
Bronze – 150 Male  Board Relay   
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YYoouutthh  CChhaammppss  FFiinnaall  NNCCCC  MMeeddaall  TTaallllyy  aanndd  WWrraapp  UUpp..  

 
  
A massive congrats to the following team members 

 
 

AAuussttrraalliiaann  MMaasstteerrss  CChhaammppiioonnsshhiippss  ––  MMaarroooocchhyyddoorree  QQlldd  

A little wave, and fantastic sunshine greeted a small Masters team at the Aussies. Mario, Andrew, DJ, Mick Crews and myself 
flew the flag for NCC had fun, tore a few muscles we didn’t know we had and achieved some  good results as well, with high-
lights being…… (Mick Crews in the sprint…nah we wont mention that) 

 
 

AAuussttrraalliiaann  OOppeenn’’ss  CChhaammppiioonnsshhiippss  ––  MMaarroooocchhyyddoorree  QQlldd  

Lake-like conditions met our U17 to Open Competitors from Tuesday to the Saturday. It could not have been any smaller, with 
the highlights being -   

 
  

MJ paddled very well all weekend with perhaps his best paddle being with Maya in the Open Mixed Double ski. His Open Dou-
ble ski cameo with Ross was also a strong paddle. Special shout out and thanks to MJ for getting the majority of our skis scru-
tinised.  
 
Unfortunately the lake conditions weren’t kind to our U23 female and Open men’s Boat crews who both bowed out after round 
robin stage.....no doubt we all need some surf for next year, that is, according to our Sweeps - Shaun and David. 

  

DDoomm  MMeellbboouurrnn   
Gold - U14 Female Iron Person 
Silver - U14 Female Swim 
Silver - U14 2km Female Swim 
Bronze - U14 Female Board Rescue 
 

  

SSaamm  HHiiggggss 
Gold - U14 Male 2km Swim  
   

  

EEmmiillyy  GGuubbeerriinnaa 
MMaaccyy  SSllaatteerr 
EEllllaa  KKooooppmmaann 
KKaattee  WWaaggllaanndd 
EEvvee  WWaatttt 
FFrraannkkiiee  TTrruummaann  
 

Bronze - U15 R&R 5 Person 
   

  

OOlliivviiaa  CClluueess 
Bronze - U14 Female Board Rescue 
   

  

FFeemmaallee  WWaatteerr 
Sophia Brown, Brooke Derz, Ella Warner , Ashleigh 
Windsham, Elise Wallace, Ruby Lovell 
Dom Melbourn, Olivia Clues 
RR&&RR  aass  aabboovvee 
   

  

MMaallee  WWaatteerr 
Zach Wasley, Braith Howieson, Luke Egan 
Luke Chaffer, Jacob Crews, Braden Crichton-Brown, 
Dylan King, Sam Higgs 

  

AAnnddrreeww  SSttuuaarrtt 
Silver - 55-59 Male 2km beach run 

  

GGlleennnn  SSllaatteerr  //  MMaarriioo  VVeesseellyy 
Bronze – 50-54 Male Double Ski 

  

AAnnnnaalliieessee  MMeellbboouurrnn   
5th - U19 Female Belt final  
   

  

RReebbeeccccaa  HHaarrvveeyy 
6th - U19 Female Ski Relay final  
10th - U19 Female Single Ski final 
10th  - U19 Female Double Ski final  

  

HHaannnneekkee  WWeeggeennaaaarr   
5th - U17 Female 2km Beach Run final  
6th - U17 Female 2 x 1km beach relay final  

  

MMaayyaa  MMoorrrriiss   
6th - U17 Female 2 x 1km beach relay final 
U19 Female Double Ski Semi Final 
   

  

AAmmeelliiaa  WWeeggeennaaaarr 
6th - U19 Female Ski Relay final  
10th - U19 Female Double Ski final  

  

MMaaddddyy  WWaallllaaccee 
6th - U19 Female Ski Relay final  
U19 Female Board Semi Final 
U19 Female Double Ski Semi Final 

  

  

AAbbiiggaaiill  MMiillnneerr 
U19 Female Double Ski Semi Final 

  

  

GGaabbbbyy  BBrraaddlleeyy 
U19 Female Double Ski Semi Final 
U17 Female Board Rescue Semi Final 

  

TTaarraa  HHaarrvveeyy 
U17 Female Board Rescue Semi Final 

   

SURF SPORTS 
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TTHHAANNKK  YYOOUU!!  

It takes a real team and whole of club effort to enable our Surf Sports team to compete in both Juniors and Seniors so a big 
““tthhaannkk  yyoouu”” to the following: 

• NCC SLSC Board of Directors 
• John Vickery, Madeline Keene and all the NCC Nippers Committee & everyone associated with running Sunday Nippers, 

as this is where Surf Sports begins and without the selfless effort of everyone on Sundays we wouldn’t be where we are 
today 

• The parents and grandparents of all our competitors 
• Helen Crews for managing and loading all of our carnival entries and Cynthia Alley, Helen’s assistant 
• Justine Hayward-Smith for coordinating Blacksmiths State accommodation 
• Julian Milligan, our Nippers photographer 
• OOuurr  ffaannttaassttiicc  ccooaacchheess - Michael Clues, Ross Chaffer, Andrew Dennehy, Sophie McGovern, Mike Girven Lowe, Jason El-

boz, Sean Davis, Sigi Hill, Andrew Stuart, Tony Williams, Rhonda Lycett and Justine Hayward-Smith 
• BBooaatt  SSwweeeeppss - Shaun Stacey, David Wymer, and Scott Macqueen 
• OOuurr  SSeenniioorr  OOffffiicciiaallss  --  Louis Tassone, Tony Tier and Judy Tier, Mick Wasley, Jim Gagen,  Clare Hagon, Julia Harvey, Sue 

Milner, Andrew Stuart, Ed Warner  
• OOuurr  IIRRBB  WWaatteerr  SSaaffeettyy  tteeaammss - Max Puddicombe, Dale Finch, Will Te Pania, Kurt Wegenaar, Steve Atkins, David Jones , 

Dylan Passarinho, Michael Jones and Mick Wasley 
• OOuurr  TTeenntt  tteeaamm - Clay Melbourn , Scott Bradley, Jamie Morris and Andrew Stuart 

SURF SPORTS 



FINANCE 

Simon Prowse 
Director of Finance 

Members, in presenting this year’s annual financial report, I am fortunate to be part of a 
club that has demonstrated resilience, passion and drive in yet another challenging  
season.  

This year’s exceptional financial performance is the result of the work of so many  
volunteers, members, donors and sponsors that have combined to ensure the Club contin-
ues its role in providing safety and community to all who visit North Curl Curl beach.  

This financial year (1 May 2020 to 30 April 2021) has seen the Club produce a net profit of 
$73,054 and an increase its cash reserves from $208,658 at 30 April 2020 to $352,065 
at 30 April 2021. A hugely positive result and evidence that the Club is preforming  
incredibly despite the challenges bought about by the pandemic.  

As expected, the lockdowns caused by the continuous impact of Covid-19 on our  
community and wider society as a whole has forced significant disruptions to some of the 
Club’s key profit centres. This includes impacts on the bar and hall hire as well as clothing 
sales and the golf day, but perhaps the most disappointing of all was the cancellation of 
this season’s 3 Point Challenge.  

Despite these disruptions to both the current operations and planning of future events, 
gross sales of $34,540 in Clothing, $70,546 for the Bar and $10,102 for Hall Hire were 
still achieved. The standout of the season however was Saul Brown and his marketing 
team whom managed to secure close to $40,000 in additional sponsorship and marketing 
funds. This income being the main contributor to the best profit the Club has seen in a  
number of years.  

The overall position and results for the Club however speaks to the great work of all the 
dedicated volunteer works of the members, the portfolio leaders. A particular mention here 
of Chris Sparkes who has demonstrated ingenuity and dedication over this season being 
able to maintain social and bar revenues despite forced closures on key dates. 

In addition to his work for the bar, Chris Sparkes and David Quinn also managed, with 
great success, the organisation and rescheduling of our clubs annual golf day which post-
ed a net profit of $29,539. This was a great event with the opportunity for our club mem-
bers to connect and socialise after a challenging season and I thank both Dave and Chris 
for the great lengths they went to in making it all happen.  

I would also like to take this opportunity to highlight the strong continued growth of our 
member’s subscriptions and surf sports income.  

Our registrar, Julie Tassone, along with the rest of the team has done an enormous job in 
attracting new members as well as maintaining our current ones for the 2020-2021  
season. This has resulted in our strongest ever membership income performance of 
$113,451, continuing the stable upward trend from $106,665 last year.  

Glenn Slater and the rest of the coaches, water safety and volunteers such as Andrew Stu-
art have once again seen the Club’s Surf Sports activities be a key contributor to the Club’s 
member base, which resulted in $6,909 in equipment hire income and $18,116 in carni-
val and competition income. Despite the disrupted competition season, this is up from the 
previous season’s figures of $3068 and $13,700 respectively.  

“The financial results 
for the year were  

solid” 

28 North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 



29 

FINANCE 

North Curl Curl SLSC Annual Report 2020/2021 

This season though, it is the generosity of our donors and spon-
sors along with the exceptional work of Saul Brown that has 
seen the most significant increase in income for our club. It is 
my great pleasure to report that this season has seen an in-
crease of 76% in donations and sponsorships from $49,030 in 
2020 to $86,121 this year. On behalf of Saul Brown, the rest of 
the Board and the Club community as a whole I would like to 
extend a sincere thankyou to our benefactors including: 

 

• John Huston  
• David Jones  
• Clay Melbourn 
• Maus Business Systems 
• Curl Curl Plumbing  
• Vivid Property  
• True Protein  
• Freshwater Community – Bendigo Bank  
• Speed Gas  
• Navwealth Financial Group  
• Clarke & Humel  
• Build Zone Constructions  
• Harbord Financial Services Limited 
• Built Pty Ltd 

 

I do apologise if I have overlooked anyone for a special mention 
as it is happily an extensive list.   

On behalf of all members, I would like to thank everyone who 
contributed to this year’s strong performance, none of us take 
lightly the magnitude of your support. 

Finally, as another year finishes, I would like to once again  
personally thank my fellow Board Members and my  
subcommittee, Colin Wilson, for all their efforts, support and 
tireless work during yet another extremely challenging year.  
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Income and Expenses - Summarised
North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club
For the year ended 30 April 2021

2021 2020

Income
Trading Account By Divisions 57,547 80,991

Other Income - Club 296,652 207,615

Other Income - General 26,500 280

Total Income 380,699 288,886

Expenses
Expenditure 307,645 319,023

Total Expenses 307,645 319,023

Profit/(Loss) before Adjustments 73,054 (30,137)

Adjustments
Prior Period Adjustments - (13,997)

Total Adjustments - (13,997)

Net Profit After Adjustments 73,054 (16,140)



The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
compilation report.
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Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club
For the year ended 30 April 2021

2021 2020

Income
Trading Account By Divisions

3 Points Challenge
Income - 28,397

Sponsorships - 3,500

Prizes - (6,100)

Expenses (161) (10,750)
Total 3 Points Challenge (161) 15,047

Clothing Sales
Sales 34,540 42,858

Opening Stock (24,672) (36,237)

Purchases (16,987) (30,338)

Closing Stock 8,849 24,672
Total Clothing Sales 1,730 955

Golf Day
Sponsorships 19,727 5,572

Fees 13,545 15,866

Golf Day - Social Income 6,527 -

Expenses (10,260) (6,027)
Total Golf Day 29,539 15,411

Bar and social Functions Income
Bar Income 70,546 101,314

Opening Stock - Bar (3,233) (2,338)

Purchases - Bar (38,535) (49,818)

Closing Stock - Bar 5,927 3,274

Purchases - Food (1,031) (689)
Total Bar and social Functions Income 33,674 51,743

Hall Account
Income 10,102 26,464

Cleaning & Maintenance (3,430) (12,286)

Electricity & Gas (13,907) (16,343)
Total Hall Account (7,236) (2,165)

Total Trading Account By Divisions 57,547 80,991

Add: Other income - Club
Carnival income 9,502 5,525

Competition Income 8,614 8,175

Kiosk/Kitchen 31,010 -



Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income

2021 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
compilation report.
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Donations & Sponsorships 86,121 49,030

Equipment Hire 6,909 3,068

Grants 37,836 16,081

Gym Subscriptions 286 980

Members Subscriptions 113,451 106,665

Training & Course Income 1,900 -
Total Add: Other income - Club 295,629 189,525

Add: Other Income - General
Interest Received - 280

Other Income General - 13,000

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 1,023 5,091

Government Stimulus - Job Keeper 16,500 -

Government Stimulus - Cash Flow Boost 10,000 -
Total Add: Other Income - General 27,523 18,371

Total Income 380,699 288,886

Gross Surplus 380,699 288,886

Expenditure
Administration - General 71 354

Affiliation and Capitation 37,837 31,871

Age Managers Clothing 2,916 289

ATV Expenses 533 487

Audit Fees 2,500 2,500

Aussie Title Costs - 4,307

Awards 9,121 14,127

Bank Charges 1,583 2,670

Board & Ski Repairs - 4,673

Carnival Competition Costs (Including Aussies) 2,662 6,989

Carnival Entries 36,421 27,655

Coaches - Paid 30,709 39,141

Computer software 2,204 1,142

Courses & Training 1,766 8,727

Depreciation - Club Equipment 48,879 44,622

Depreciation - Leasehold Imp 37,156 40,853

Filing Fees 937 1,712

First Aid Supplies 7,843 2,457

Insurance 9,662 12,196

Interest Paid - Chattel Mortgage 821 1,443

IRB Expenses 3,903 5,210

Lease of Club 70 70

Patrol Expenses 6,080 5,995

Presentation & Trophies 116 1,083

Printing Postage and Stationery 1,855 2,172

Surf Sports Costs 5,078 -



Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income

2021 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
compilation report.
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Repairs and maintenance 14,115 16,727

Rubbish Removal - 373

Salaries and Wages 25,613 20,145

Sponsorship expenses 960 480

State Kit - JAC 6,529 5,000

Party Expenses - 526

Superannuation 1,351 1,600

Telephone & Internet 1,486 1,667

Trailer Expenses - 988

Training & Educaiton Costs 1,316 79

TV & and Foxtel 1,301 1,145

Bad debt expense 4,050 5,550

Donations Paid 201 2,000

Total Expenditure 307,645 319,023

Current Year Surplus/ (Deficit) Before Adjustments 73,054 (30,137)

Adjustments
Prior Period Adjustments - 13,997

Total Adjustments - 13,997

Net Current Year Surplus After Adjustments 73,054 (44,133)

Current Year Other Comprehensive Income - -

Current year Total Comprehensive Income 73,054 (44,133)



The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
compilation report.
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Statement of Financial Position
North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club
As at 30 April 2021

NOTES 30 APR 2021 30 APR 2020

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bendigo Bank - Trading A/C 57,730 47,130

Bendigo Bank - CM - at Call 287,322 157,322

Bank of QLD - General 6531 222 222

Float - Caretaker & Bar 6,790 3,984
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 352,065 208,658

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade Debtors & Sundry Debtors 37,473 68,948
Total Trade and Other Receivables 37,473 68,948

Inventories
Bar Stock 5,927 3,274

Clothing Stock 8,849 24,672
Total Inventories 14,776 27,946

GST Receivable
GST Payable 9,776 -
Total GST Receivable 9,776 -

Total Current Assets 414,089 305,552

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold Improvements
At Cost 764,241 761,236

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (345,521) (308,365)
Total Leasehold Improvements 418,719 452,871

Club Equipment
At Cost 524,895 468,496

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (435,264) (386,385)
Total Club Equipment 89,631 82,111

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 508,350 534,981

Other Non-Current Assets
Loans Issued to NCC SLSC operations 120 -
Total Other Non-Current Assets 120 -

Total Non-Current Assets 508,470 534,981

Total Assets 922,560 840,534

Liabilities
Current Liabilities



Statement of Financial Position

NOTES 30 APR 2021 30 APR 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
compilation report.
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Trade and Other Payables 38,395 23,720
Total Current Liabilities 38,395 23,720

Non-Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities - 5,703
Total Non-Current Liabilities - 5,703

Total Liabilities 38,395 29,423

Net Assets 884,165 811,111

Member's Funds
Retained Earnings

Current Year Earnings 73,054 (44,133)

Retained Earnings 811,111 855,244
Total Retained Earnings 884,165 811,111

Total Member's Funds 884,165 811,111
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Statement of Cash Flows
North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club
For the year ended 30 April 2021

2021 2020

Cash flows from Operating Activities
Cash Receipts From Other Operating Activities 527,644 480,511

Cash Payments From Other Operating Activities (328,804) (429,030)

Interest Received - 280

Net GST Collected - (44)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 198,840 51,717

Cash flows from Investing Activities
Payment for Property, Plant and Equipment (55,313) (62,706)

Other Cash Items From Investing Activities (120) 2,912

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (55,433) (59,795)

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash held 143,406 (8,078)

Cash Balances
Cash Balance at beginning of period 208,658 216,736

Movement in Cash 143,406 (8,078)

Cash Balance at end of period 352,065 208,658

Movement in Cash 143,406 (8,078)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
North Curl Curl Surf Life Saving Club
For the year ended 30 April 2021

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are special purpose financial statements prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 2009 (NSW), the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 (NSW) and the Australian
Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 (Cth) and the club's constitution. The committee has determined that the
association is not a reporting entity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the above acts and regulations, the club's
constitution and the following Australian Accounting Standards:

AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements

AASB 107 Statements of Cash Flows

AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

AASB 1031 Materiality

AASB 1048 Interpretation of Accounting Standards

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures

No other Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board have been applied.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historic costs and do not take into account
changing money values or, except where stated specifically, current valuations of non-current assets. The following significant
accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless stated otherwise, have been adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements.

Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the Association is exempt from income tax under Div 50 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Leasehold improvements and office equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.

In the event the carrying value of plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying value is
written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when
impairment indicators are present.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the association and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation

The depreciation method and useful life used for items of property, plant and equipment(excluding freehold land) reflects the
pattern in which their future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the association. Depreciation commences from
the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period
of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. The depreciation method and useful life of assets is reviewed
annually to ensure they are still appropriate.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are
transferred to retained earnings.

Employee Provisions

Provision is made for the association’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of
the reporting period. Employee provisions have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts are presented within
current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from donors.
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All
other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Revenue and Other Income
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts
and volume rebates allowed. For this purpose, deferred consideration is not discounted to present values when recognising
revenue.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in
the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of
receipt.

If conditions are attached to the grant that must be satisfied before the association is eligible to receive the contribution,
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.

Leases

Leases of PPE, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset (but not the legal
ownership) are transferred to the association, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair value of the
leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease
payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for that period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term. Lease
payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

Financial Instruments

Recognition,initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument, and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those carried at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities are described below.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged,cancelled or expires.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the transaction
price, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable).

For the purpose of subsequent measurement,financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments
are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:

·    amortised cost
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·    fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

·    equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs,
finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within other expenses.

Classifications are determined by both:

·    The entities business model for managing the financial asset

·    The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs,
finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables, which is presented within other expenses.

Subsequent measurement financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not designated as FVPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash flows

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these remeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is omitted where
the effect if discounting is immaterial. The Association’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into
this category of financial instruments as well as long-term deposit that were previously classified as held-to-maturity under
AASB 139.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than ‘hold to collect’ or ‘hold to collect and sell’ are
categorised at fair value through profit and loss. Further,irrespective of business model financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVPL. All derivative financial instruments fall into
this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements
apply (see below).

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Equity FVOCI)

Investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading are eligible for an irrevocable election at inception to be
measured at FVOCI. Under Equity FVOCI, subsequent movements in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividend from these investments continue to be recorded as other income within the
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents return of capital.

Impairment of Financial assets

AASB 9’s impairment requirements use more forward looking information to recognize expected credit losses - the ‘expected
credit losses (ECL) model’. Instruments within the scope of the new requirements included loans and other debt-type financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, trade receivables and loan commitments and some financial guarantee contracts
(for the issuer) that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Association considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit
losses,including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of
the future cash flows of the instrument.
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In applying this forward-looking approach,a distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or that have low credit
risk (‘Stage 1’) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk is not
low (‘Stage 2’).

‘Stage 3’ would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

‘12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit losses’ are recognised for
the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

Trade and other receivables

The Association makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables and records the loss
allowance at the amount equal to the expected lifetime credit losses. In using this practical expedient, the Association uses its
historical experience, external indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit losses using a
provision matrix.

Classification andmeasurement of financial liabilities

As the accounting for financial liabilities remains largely unchanged from AASB 139, the Association’s financial liabilities were
not impacted by the adoption of AASB 9. However, for completeness, the accounting policy is disclosed below.

The Association’s financial liabilities include borrowings and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the
Association designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for derivatives and
financial liabilities designated at FVPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss(other than derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedging instruments).

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are
included within finance costs or finance income.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivablesand payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST
receivable or payable. The net amount ofGST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or
payables in theassets and liabilities statement. 

Accounts Payable and Other Payables

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and
services received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current
liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.
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1. Related Party Transactions

Interest in Contracts

During the year the association entered into a contract with Navwealth Accounting Pty Ltd to provide accounting and taxation
services to the association. Simon Prowse, who is a committee member of the association, is also the managing director of
Navwealth Accounting Pty Ltd. During the year $Nil was paid to Navwealth Accounting Pty Ltd for its service.

2. Subsequent Events

The World Health Organisation (WHO) declared the COVID-19 virus a global Health emergency on 30 January 2020. Global trade
and markets have been significantly disrupted, and many businesses have had to, or will have to, limit or suspend their
operations.

 

All global share markets have suffered significant falls since 30 January 2020. The committee have assessed the impact of the
pandemic on the Financial Statements of the Association. There is no effect of the pandemic on the asset values as at 30 April
2020.
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